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HARMON PARR 
by Alice Shaneyfelt Howell

Harmon Park in Kearney, which has been enjoyed by tens of thousands of 
people since 1924, has had a long and changing history.

The oldest portion of the park, the block between 5th and 6th Avenues and 29th 
and 30th Streets, dates back to August 7, 1876, when it was given to the city by 
Thomas Perkins and James Harford “for the sole and only purpose of a public park for 
the use and benefit of the inhabitants of said city,” according to the deed. It was later 
dubbed Third Ward Park, and so designated for many years.

Beautiful trees, grass and flowers, some sidewalks, a couple of drinking fountains 
and a few benches were all this park could boast in the early years when its location 
was near the north edge of the residential section of the city. There was never a 
bandshell, and there were no picnic tables or playground equipment. Probably some 
summer church services were held. The name of this park area was later changed to 
Lincoln Park.

When tent Chautauqua was organized for summer entertainment in Kearney in 
1907 (Buffalo Tales, Vol. 10, No. 7), the block north of Third Ward Park was 
acquired by the city for Chautauqua grounds, and from 1907 until 1924 this section of 
the park was named Chautauqua Park. Beyond these grounds to the north were acres 
of farm and pasture lands. (Continued on Page 3)
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Trails & Rails Museum (308) 234-3041

$10.00
$15.00
S25.00

BH(TA,n TALES is the official publication of the Buffalo County Historical Society, a non-profit

dues, payable January 1, are:
Basic Membership
Institutional Membership  .....................................................................

bfe^taship^^SlOaOO for an individual; $150.00 for husband and wife, jointly.

Officers and Directors: President. Margaret Hohnholt; Vice-President, Merlin Berglund: Secretary, 
Colleen Parker: Treasurer, Philip S. Holmgren. Directors: Frances Link, Barb Avery, Minnette Steinbrink, 
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An all-day bus tour to Nebraska City and Brownville is planned for Sunday, 
October 2. Arbor Lodge at Nebraska City and places of interest at historic Brownville 
wil be visited. Details have not been finalized as to cost and schedule. Further infor- 
uau°L will be publicized on radio and in the newspapers, or you may call Henry 
Hohnholt (237-7327). Glen Wisch, Merwyn Henderson and Hohnholt comprise the 
lour committee of the Society.

•• •••••• • •
iz Buffalo County Historical Society had a part in the July 2 festival at Fort 

earny when volunteers gathered under the trees in back of the blacksmith shop tor 
ukJl?e ??mes- C^ss* deckers, cards, horseshoe pitching and croquet were super- 
isea by Henry and Margaret Hohnholt, Merlin and Wilma Burgland, Bonnie Richter, 

bene and Loree Maddux, Myron and Iola Fougeron. Early methods of letter writing 
were demonstrated by Alice Howell. Susan McFerrin played old time tunes on the 
guitar. Many children and adults.participated in these events.

NEW MEMBERS
Mr. and Mrs. Norris Kuebler . -
Doug and Cathie Turner Urn

Don and Lucile E' 
Kay B. Schmid .

706 West 11th Street

WITH THE SOCIETY
“The First Inhabitants of Buffalo County” is the theme of a new exhibit at the 

Trails and Rails Museum. These first settlers came by wagon and railroad. Their 
experiences and their way of life are depicted in three separate displays: (1) An 
outdoor display of a wagon containing articles carried in an emigrant’s wagon as the 
family made their way to Buffalo County. (2) An exhibit in the caboose of the train, 
showing tools used in bygone days. (3) In the exhibit room of the depot, artifacts 
relating to those early settlers, including beadwork given by the Pawnee Indians to 
Mrs. Louisa Collins, Kearney’s first woman inhabitant.

The exhibit was prepared by Susan McFerrin and Barb Avery, with historical data 
written by Alice Howell.

Come, see, and enjoy!
•••••••• ,

957 visitors toured the Trails and Rails Museum between June 6 and July 17, 
according to Margaret Hohnholt, Historical Society president. Museum guides Kay 
Vetter and Becky Randall conduct the tours, assisted by volunteer aides recruited by

Join Sen‘ y°u can with the visitors’ program at the museum, call Lois at 
40/-4oOO.

■vans. . .Sunnyvale, CA
.....................Mesa, AZ

Historical Society president. Museum guides Kay

help with the visitors’ program at the museum, call Lois at
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Formal flower gardens.

In 1924 William E. Harmon of New York City organized the Harmon Foundation 
for the purpose of lending financial assistance to communities wishing to open 
playgrounds. Esther Stock Kroeger, secretary of the Kearney Chamber of Commerce, 
heard of this, and with the acquiescence and assistance of Chamber president Ray E. 
Turner, made application for a grant from the Harmon Foundation. Fifty communities 
of the nation would receive funds to secure fields for playgrounds. 784 towns applied; 
Kearney was one of the fifty lucky recipients.

The Harmon Foundation donated $2,000.00 to the city to purchase fourteen 
acres. The cost was $2,640.00 and the city put up the extra $640.00. The land 
purchased was the four-block area between 31st and 33rd Streets, and between 5th 
and 7th Avenues. Later the city would also purchase the half block between Park 
school grounds and 31st Street, making the park six and one-half blocks in size, and 
so it remains today. The four-block area purchased by the Harmon gift was designated 
Harmon Field. This was a stipulation in the deed. For five years the park was required 
to operate under this and other stipulations laid down by the Harmon Foundation. A 
marker in the park commemorating the gift reads:

W -

.st ®

HARMON FIELD
This playfield was made ours through the assistance of the

HARMON FOUNDATION
1924

dedicated forever to the plays of children, 
the development of youth and the recreation of all. 

“The gift of land is the gift eternal.”
Wm. E. Harmon
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Swimming Pool and Bathhouse — Opened June 1937.

A Board of Park Commissioners was created by city ordinance in March of 1925. 
Mayor T. H. Bolte appointed W. T. Souders, Ray E. Turner and G. A. Fairchild to the 
first park board. During the five-year term of the Harmon contract, the park commis­
sioners entered the National Playground Beautification contest, winning cash prizes 
each year which were used exclusively for beautification projects. The board started 
other development; trees were planted and playground equipment was installed.

Community interest was high. The Kiwanis Club provided a wading pool for 
children, the Cosmopolitan Club constructed three tennis courts, and the Rotary Club 
and other civic organizations, as well as individuals, made cash donations or 
equipment contributions. The Kearney Woman’s Club placed the first picnic tables in 
the park.

Mrs. Bud Merryman recalls that her father, Bill Cave, was the first park 
policeman, appointed in 1926 at a salary of $75.00 a month. In addition to his police 
duties, he supervised the installation of the first playground equipment in the park, 
which included a double slide, merry-go-round, ocean wave and traveling ladder.

Jean Schrack Lynch as a child lived one block east of the park. Her recollection of 
the park as she first knew it (1928-29) was the two croquet and two roquet courts, oh 
the east side, north of which were the formal flower gardens with a fish pond in the 
center. She said that the rail around the pond had prongs pointed straight up, but after 
causing injury to several children, the prongs were all bent over and rounded, and 
remain so today. On north of the gardens were at least six horseshoe courts. (This 
area now occupied by the Activities Center.) North of this was the ball diamond.

Next to this area in the center of the park was the playground, north of which 
were monkey cages, later used for squirrels, pigeons and similar small animals and 
further north was a corral for about 14 ponies. “I was one of the lucky children who 
took care of these ponies,” says Mrs. Lynch, “and it was a highlight of my childhood. 
The ponies were owned by the city and were taken care of by the Barklund family
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Rock Garden — 1938/39 
Note construction of the pyramid of rocks at the right and absence of lighthouse.

whose farm was located at 33rd Street and 4th Avenue. We took the ponies to the 
park at 9:00 a.m., back to their barn at the farm about 11:00, then back to the park 
from 1:30 to 4:00, and again in the evening from 7:00 to 8:30. The rides were offered 
to children every weekday and on Sunday afternoons.

“Other children 1 recall who took care of the ponies were Rita and Don Patton, 
Lawrence and Bryce Kneeland, May Sponsberg, Merle and Earl Bond, Milton and 
Leonard Hawkins and Donald Dean Frank. The pony rides were discontinued when 
plans for the swimming pool in that area were made.”

The watering of the two-block wide grassy areas from 29th to 33rd Streets 
became a gigantic job, and in 1932 James K. Harvey was hired to do this work. Small, 
rounded, “half-moon” sprinklers were used. His wife Eleanor recalls that it was a 
demanding and exhausting job from 7:30 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. daily during the hot 
and dry days of the drought years of the 30’s.

Harvey was on the park staff for 36 years and became park manager in the early 
1940’s. Because of the vandalism in the park the Harveys were asked to move into a 
home adjacent to the park grounds in 1951 to keep an eye on the “goings-on” in the 
park, which Eleanor says were not only mischievous, but destructive. On retirement in 
1968, their son, James E. Harvey, took over his father’s job as park manager.

The period of the 1930’s was one of financial depression when the heat, drought 
and grasshoppers seemed almost too much to bear. The development of Harmon 
Field must have been a symbol of hope because in spite of the difficult times, the 
people of Kearney in 1936 voted in favor of a local bond issue of $35,000 to construct 
a swimming pool and bathhouse on the west side of Harmon Field. Plans for a 
modern, up-to-date swimming pool, 160 feet long and 821/? feet wide, with 
bathhouse, were drawn up by Architects McClure and Walker. However, the project 
was held up before contracts were let when it was learned that the city might be eligible 
for a federal PWA (Public Works Administration) grant which would provide a more 
comprehensive park project. On June 15, 1936, a grant of $28,600 was applied for.
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Sonotorium, dedicated June 21, 1938
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The Kearney Daily Hub of June 16 explains: “The $35,000 swimming pool would be 
built as planned, and the extra funds spent for a band shell, shelter houses, rock 
garden and other park improvements, making the project total $63,600 in all.”

On September 6 PWA advised that a grant of $21,600 had been approved and 
the project got under way. Henry Knutzen was the general contractor. The pool 
opened in late June of 1937 and served the Kearney community well until late 1986 
when it was closed. A new pool and renovation of the original bathhouse is currently 
taking place and will be in operation by the summer of 1989.

Plans for a rock garden at Harmon Field were initiated also in 1936. The Hub of 
May 21, 1936 reported on a meeting of the park commissioners who predicted that 
"Kearney’s principal park, Harmon Field, will some day have a beautiful rock 
garden...The rock garden may be built much sooner and much more cheaply...if all 
Kearney residents who travel to mountain country, the Rockies or elsewhere,...will 
pick out just one or two odd-shaped rocks or stones and bring them back to Kearney, 
the park would soon have a very good start toward its proposed rock garden.” The 
pyramid of small rocks (across the walk from the lighthouse) is undoubtedly the result 
of this suggestion. It is said to contain a rock from every state.

The major construction of the rock garden, however, was accomplished through 
a WPA (Works Progress Administration) project, which was approved September 4, 
1936. WPA was one of the federal government’s programs to put people back to work 
during the depression of the 30’s. The project application was signed by Ray Turner, 
president of the park board, and Joe Elliott, fiscal officer. H. G. Quiggle was 
superintendent of the park improvement project and George Reiber was construction 
foreman. Report of the completed project, filed February 8, 1938, listed the work 
accomplished: 6 horseshoe courts, 6 tennis courts, 8 recreational facilities, 4 retaining 
walls and revetments, 1200 lineal ft. sidewalk, 14 slopes, berms and terraces. The 
report also contained a breakdown of labor and material

Man hours of relief labor
Man hours of non-relief labor

Labor costs paid by WPA 
paid by sponsor

Materials paid for by WPA 
paid for by sponsor

Total project cost
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Lighthouse constructed during summer of 1940.

The rock garden apparently was not professionally designed, no blueprints exist. 
Rocks and boulders were hauled in by Union Pacific flat cars, free of charge, from 
Wyoming, Utah, Kansas, North and South Dakota, as well as Nebraska. The largest 
rock came from the Republican river valley south of Franklin. The rocks were loaded 
and unloaded by WPA workers. The story is told of one huge rock weighing 8,400 
pounds being moved on a sled through the park and while crossing the stream the 
rock rolled off blocking the water. It was too heavy to move so workmen dug under it 
to let the water flow. The rock stayed where it fell and can be seen today.

The NYA (National Youth Administration), a national program for youth in the 
depression period, constructed a lily pond directly east of the swimming pool in the 
summer of 1937. It has since been filled in and made into a rose garden. NYA was 
also in charge of the construction of the park office in 1939.

The two shelter houses built with money from the first PWA park improvement 
grant became the wings for a Sonotorium, the next major park project in 1938.

On the occasion of its dedication on June 21, 1938, the Kearney Daily Hub 
describes the structure and its equipment: “Kearney’s new Sonotorium—was formally 
dedicated at a program last evening which drew thousands of spectators to Harmon 
Field park. “Sonotorium is a newly-coined word. The structure is an open-air theater 
with a broad, sixty-foot open air stage, flanked on either side by tall concrete towers 
and spreading concrete wings which house an electric sound system capable of being 
heard for any distance from a few feet up to a mile or two.

This very advanced speaker system was built by the Keller Radio Service of 
Kearney, and involved highly technical equipment. The east pylon of the Sonotorium 
where the set was located was full of wires, plugs, knobs and instrument boards. At the 
dedication program, Ward Minor, Kearney attorney, gave a brief talk eulogizing 
Stanley Keller, who designed and built the system, and also praised the work of 
Keller’s assistant, Dale Boucher. Mr. Keller had died before the system was installed, 
but the installation and operation of the elaborate sound system was carried on by 
Dale Boucher at the dedication and for some time thereafter.

A new electric organ funded by the Junior Chamber of Commerce was installed 
for the dedication and played by LoDesca Miller. Federal and state PWA, WPA and 
NYA officials were on hand. Mayor D. Wort expressed thanks to Architects, McClure 
and Walker, and to the park commissioners. The national anthem, played on the 
organ, marked the end of the dedication. Programs at the Sonotorium have since 
been a summer tradition.
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The confusion and uncertainty of the park names was cleared up by action of the 
City Council on April 17, 1939, by which “Harmon Field and Lincoln Park, 
immediately adjacent to each other, shall be designated as Harmon Park.”

In descriptions of the many park improvement projects at Harmon Field, no 
mention was ever made of the lighth.ouse, and no clue as to when it was built. The 
answer was found in the May 6, 1940 issue of the Kearney Daily Hub, in an article 
setting out the upcoming summer season at the park:

Stone is on the ground for the erection of a lighthouse overlooking a 
portion of the rock garden. It will have a rounding stair. Construction is 
expected to be under way within 10 days. Incidentally, rocks from the first 
school, first courthouse and first city hall in Kearney have been used in the 
rock garden.

A Youth Center was completed on Harmon Park grounds in August of 1951. 
Two barracks buildings from the Kearney Air Base were moved into the park, improv­
ed and remodeled. Its popularity as a youth center declined in the late 1960’s, and the 
building now houses the Harmon Activities Center.

In addition to the larger projects, the park has offered lighted tennis courts, 
ballgames of every variety — hard ball, soft ball, kitten ball, Little League ball — bad­
minton, soccer, volleyball, and facilities for playing croquet, roquet, horseshoes, 
shuffleboard and other popular games.

Today the park remains relatively unchanged. It is operated along with other city 
parks by the Kearney Park and Recreation Department, with direction from a Park 
Advisory Board of seven members appointed by the City Council. It is a drawing 
attraction for citizens of Kearney and for out-of-town visitors alike, as they picnic, seek 
recreation, gather for reunions, enjoy programs at the Sonotorium or browse through 
the rock garden. With the current improvement projects for a new swimming pool, 
renovated bathhouse and an upgrading of the entire park, the people of Kearney 
continue to dedicate Harmon Park “forever to the plays of children, the.development 
of youth and the recreation of all.”


